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Sub. H.B. 33

As Passed by the Senate

MCDCD30, MCDCD60,

MCDCD61, MCDCD62,

MCDCD64 MCDCD65,

DOHCD45

_______________________________ moved to amend as follows:

In line 29 of the title, after "173.21," insert "173.24," 1

In line 111 of the title, after "3721.026," insert "3721.08,

3721.17, 3721.99,"

2

3

In line 189 of the title, after "5165.152," insert

"5165.157,"

4

5

In line 190 of the title, after "5165.192," insert "5165.23," 6

In line 194 of the title, after "5168.26," insert "5168.40," 7

In line 273 of the title, after "5164.913," insert

"5165.158,"

8

9

In line 783, after "173.21," insert "173.24," 10

In line 844, after "3721.026," insert "3721.08, 3721.17,

3721.99,"

11

12

In line 900, after "5165.152," insert "5165.157,"; after

"5165.192," insert "5165.23,"

13

14

In line 903, after "5168.26," insert "5168.40," 15
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In line 962, after "5164.913," insert "5165.158," 16

After line 19661, insert: 17

"Sec. 173.24. (A) As used in this section: 18

(1) "Employee" and "employer" have the same meanings as in

section 4113.51 of the Revised Code.

19

20

(2) "Retaliatory action" includes physical, mental, or verbal

abuse; change of room assignment; withholding of services; failure

to provide care in a timely manner; discharge; and termination of

employment.

21

22

23

24

(B) An employee providing information to or participating in

good faith in registering a complaint with the office of the state

long-term care ombudsman program or participating in the

investigation of a complaint or in administrative or judicial

proceedings resulting from a complaint registered with the office

shall have the full protection against disciplinary or retaliatory

action provided by division (G)(E) of section 3721.17 and by

sections 4113.51 to 4113.53 of the Revised Code.

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

(C) No long-term care provider or other entity, no person

employed by a long-term care provider or other entity, and no

other individual shall knowingly subject any resident, recipient,

employee, representative of the office of the state long-term care

ombudsman program, or another individual to any form of

retaliation, reprisal, discipline, or discrimination for doing any

of the following:

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

(1) Providing information to the office; 40

(2) Participating in registering a complaint with the office; 41

(3) Cooperating with or participating in the investigation of

a complaint by the office or in administrative or judicial

42

43
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proceedings resulting from a complaint registered with the

office."

44

45

In line 65380, delete "The director" 46

Delete lines 65381 and 65382 47

In line 65385, delete "Full and complete disclosure" and

insert "Disclosure"

48

49

In line 65388, after "of" insert "the building or buildings

in which"; after "home" insert "is housed"; after the second

"owner" insert "of the building or buildings"

50

51

52

In line 65390, after "(iii)" insert "The owner of the legal

rights associated with the ownership and operation of the nursing

home beds, if the owner is a different person from the applicant;

53

54

55

(iv)"; delete "manager of" and insert "management firm or

business employed to manage"; delete the second "manager" and

insert "management firm or business employed to manage the nursing

home"

56

57

58

59

In line 65392, delete "(iv)" and insert "(v)" 60

In line 65393, delete "whether"; delete the second "the" 61

In line 65394, delete "applicant, owner, or manager of the

nursing home" and insert "any party identified in division

(A)(1)(a) of this section"

62

63

64

In line 65395, delete "Full and complete disclosure" and

insert "Disclosure"

65

66

In line 65411, after "(c)" delete the balance of the line 67

Delete lines 65412 and 65413 68

In line 65414, delete "(d)" 69

In line 65475, delete "submits copies of the nursing" 70

CC0061X4 Page 3

135HB33-CC0061X4/RYT



In line 65476, delete "home's policies and procedures,

including" and insert "attests that the applicant has"

71

72

In line 65477, delete "that are required" 73

In line 65479, delete "submits" and insert "attests that the

applicant has"

74

75

In line 65483, delete "demonstrates that" and insert "attests

that the applicant has"

76

77

In line 65484, after "experience," insert "who" 78

In line 65528, after "(D)" insert "(1) The director shall

investigate an allegation that a change of operator has occurred

and the entering operator failed to submit an application in

accordance with this section or an application was filed but the

information was fraudulent. The director may request the attorney

general's assistance with an investigation under this section.

79

80

81

82

83

84

(2)"; after "aware" insert ", by means of an investigation or

otherwise,"

85

86

In line 65332, after "1396r(f)(10)" insert ". 87

(14) "Real and present danger" means immediate danger of

serious physical or life-threatening harm to one or more occupants

of a home"

88

89

90

After line 65546, insert: 91

"Sec. 3721.08. (A) As used in this section, "real and present

danger" means imminent danger of serious physical or

life-threatening harm to one or more occupants of a home.

92

93

94

(B) The director of health may petition the court of common

pleas of the county in which the home is located for an order

enjoining any person from operating a home without a license or

95

96

97
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enjoining a county home or district home that has had its license

revoked from continuing to operate. The court shall have

jurisdiction to grant such injunctive relief upon a showing that

the respondent named in the petition is operating a home without a

license or that the county home or district home named in the

petition is operating despite the revocation of its license. The

court shall have jurisdiction to grant such injunctive relief

against the operation of a home without a valid license regardless

of whether the home meets essential licensing requirements.

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

(C)(B) Unless the department of medicaid or contracting

agency has taken action under section 5165.77 of the Revised Code

to appoint a temporary manager or seek injunctive relief, if, in

the judgment of the director of health, real and present danger

exists at any home, the director may petition the court of common

pleas of the county in which the home is located for such

injunctive relief as is necessary to close the home, transfer one

or more occupants to other homes or other appropriate care

settings, or otherwise eliminate the real and present danger. The

court shall have the jurisdiction to grant such injunctive relief

upon a showing that there is real and present danger.

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

(D)(1)(C)(1) If the director determines that real and present

danger exists at a home and elects not to immediately seek

injunctive relief under division (C)(B) of this section, the

director may give written notice of proposed action to the home.

The notice shall specify all of the following:

118

119

120

121

122

(a) The nature of the conditions giving rise to the real and

present danger;

123

124

(b) The measures that the director determines the home must

take to respond to the conditions;

125

126

(c) The date on which the director intends to seek injunctive 127

CC0061X4 Page 5

135HB33-CC0061X4/RYT



relief under division (C)(B) of this section if the director

determines that real and present danger exists at the home.

128

129

(2) If the home notifies the director, within the time

specified pursuant to division (D)(1)(c)(C)(1)(c) of this section,

that it believes the conditions giving rise to the real and

present danger have been substantially corrected, the director

shall conduct an inspection to determine whether real and present

danger exists. If the director determines on the basis of the

inspection that real and present danger exists, the director may

petition under division (C)(B) of this section for injunctive

relief.

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

(E)(1)(D)(1) If in the judgment of the director of health

conditions exist at a home that will give rise to real and present

danger if not corrected, the director shall give written notice of

proposed action to the home. The notice shall specify all of the

following:

139

140

141

142

143

(a) The nature of the conditions giving rise to the

director's judgment;

144

145

(b) The measures that the director determines the home must

take to respond to the conditions;

146

147

(c) The date, which shall be no less than ten days after the

notice is delivered, on which the director intends to seek

injunctive relief under division (C)(B) of this section if the

conditions are not substantially corrected and the director

determines that a real and present danger exists.

148

149

150

151

152

(2) If the home notifies the director, within the period of

time specified pursuant to division (E)(1)(c)(D)(1)(c) of this

section, that the conditions giving rise to the director's

determination have been substantially corrected, the director

153

154

155

156
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shall conduct an inspection. If the director determines on the

basis of the inspection that the conditions have not been

corrected and a real and present danger exists, the director may

petition under division (C)(B) of this section for injunctive

relief.

157

158

159

160

161

(F)(1)(E)(1) A court that grants injunctive relief under

division (C)(B) of this section may also appoint a special master

who, subject to division (F)(2)(E)(2) of this section, shall have

such powers and authority over the home and length of appointment

as the court considers necessary. Subject to division (F)(2)(E)(2)

of this section, the salary of a special master and any costs

incurred by a special master shall be the obligation of the home.

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

(2) No special master shall enter into any employment

contract on behalf of a home, or purchase with the home's funds

any capital goods totaling more than ten thousand dollars, unless

the special master has obtained approval for the contract or

purchase from the home's operator or the court.

169

170

171

172

173

(G)(F) If the director takes action under division (C)(B),

(D)(C), or (E)(D) of this section, the director may also appoint

employees of the department of health to conduct on-site

monitoring of the home. Appointment of monitors is not subject to

appeal under Chapter 119. or any other section of the Revised

Code. No employee of a home for which monitors are appointed, no

person employed by the home within the previous two years, and no

person who currently has a consulting contract with the department

or a home, shall be appointed under this division. Every monitor

shall have the professional qualifications necessary to monitor

correction of the conditions that give rise to or, in the

director's judgment, will give rise to real and present danger.

The number of monitors present at a home at any given time shall

not exceed one for every fifty residents, or fraction thereof.

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187
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(H)(G) On finding that the real and present danger for which

injunctive relief was granted under division (C)(B) of this

section has been eliminated and that the home's operator has

demonstrated the capacity to prevent the real and present danger

from recurring, the court shall terminate its jurisdiction over

the home and return control and management of the home to the

operator. If the real and present danger cannot be eliminated

practicably within a reasonable time following appointment of a

special master, the court may order the special master to close

the home and transfer all residents to other homes or other

appropriate care settings.

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

(I)(H) The director of health shall give notice of proposed

action under divisions (D)(C) and (E)(D) of this section to both

of the following:

199

200

201

(1) The home's administrator; 202

(2) If the home is operated by an organization described in

subsection 501(c)(3) and tax exempt under subsection 501(a) of the

"Internal Revenue Code of 1986," 100 Stat. 2085, 26 U.S.C.A. 1, as

amended, the board of trustees of the organization; or, if the

home is not operated by such an organization, the owner of the

home.

203

204

205

206

207

208

Notices shall be delivered by certified mail or hand

delivery. If notices are mailed, they shall be addressed to the

persons specified in divisions (I)(1)(H)(1) and (2) of this

section, as indicated in the department of health's records. If

they are hand delivered, they shall be delivered to persons who

would reasonably appear to the average prudent person to have

authority to accept them.

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

(J)(I) If ownership of a home is assigned or transferred to a

different person, the new owner is responsible and liable for

216

217
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compliance with any notice of proposed action or order issued

under this section prior to the effective date of the assignment

or transfer.

218

219

220

Sec. 3721.17. (A) Any resident who believes that the

resident's rights under sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised

Code have been violated may file a grievance under procedures

adopted pursuant to division (A)(2) of section 3721.12 of the

Revised Code.

221

222

223

224

225

When the grievance committee determines a violation of

sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code has occurred, it

shall notify the administrator of the home. If the violation

cannot be corrected within ten days, or if ten days have elapsed

without correction of the violation, the grievance committee shall

refer the matter to the department of health.

226

227

228

229

230

231

(B) Any person who believes that a resident's rights under

sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code have been violated

may report or cause reports to be made of the information directly

to the department of health. No person who files a report is

liable for civil damages resulting from the report.

232

233

234

235

236

(C)(1) Within thirty days of receiving a complaint under this

section, the The department of health shall investigate any

complaint referred to it by a home's grievance committee and any

complaint from any source that alleges that the home provided

substantially less than adequate care or treatment, or

substantially unsafe conditions, or, within seven days of

receiving a complaint, refer it to the attorney general, if the

attorney general agrees to investigate within thirty days.

237

238

239

240

241

242

243

244

(2) Within thirty days of receiving a complaint under this

section, the The department of health may investigate any alleged

245

246
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violation of sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code, or

of rules, policies, or procedures adopted pursuant to those

sections, not covered by division (C)(1) of this section, or it

may, within seven days of receiving a complaint, refer the

complaint to the grievance committee at the home where the alleged

violation occurred, or to the attorney general if the attorney

general agrees to investigate within thirty days.

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

(D) If, after an investigation, the department of health

finds probable cause to believe that a violation of sections

3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code, or of rules, policies, or

procedures adopted pursuant to those sections, has occurred at a

home that is certified under the medicare or medicaid program, it

shall cite one or more findings or deficiencies under sections

5165.60 to 5165.89 of the Revised Code. If the home is not so

certified, the department shall hold an adjudicative hearing

within thirty days under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code, and, if

necessary, take action under section 3721.99 of the Revised Code.

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

(E) Upon a finding at an adjudicative hearing under division

(D) of this section that a violation of sections 3721.10 to

3721.17 of the Revised Code, or of rules, policies, or procedures

adopted pursuant thereto, has occurred, the department of health

shall make an order for compliance, set a reasonable time for

compliance, and assess a fine pursuant to division (F) of this

section. The fine shall be paid to the general revenue fund only

if compliance with the order is not shown to have been made within

the reasonable time set in the order. The department of health may

issue an order prohibiting the continuation of any violation of

sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code.

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

274

Findings at the hearings conducted under this section may be

appealed pursuant to Chapter 119. of the Revised Code, except that

an appeal may be made to the court of common pleas of the county

275

276

277
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in which the home is located.
278

The department of health shall initiate proceedings in court

to collect any fine assessed under this section that is unpaid

thirty days after the violator's final appeal is exhausted.

279

280

281

(F) Any home found, pursuant to an adjudication hearing under

division (D) of this section, to have violated sections 3721.10 to

3721.17 of the Revised Code, or rules, policies, or procedures

adopted pursuant to those sections may be fined not less than one

hundred nor more than five hundred dollars for a first offense.

For each subsequent offense, the home may be fined not less than

two hundred nor more than one thousand dollars.

282

283

284

285

286

287

288

A violation of sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised

Code is a separate offense for each day of the violation and for

each resident who claims the violation.

289

290

291

(G) No home or employee of a home shall retaliate against any

person who:

292

293

(1) Exercises any right set forth in sections 3721.10 to

3721.17 of the Revised Code, including, but not limited to, filing

a complaint with the home's grievance committee or reporting an

alleged violation to the department of health;

294

295

296

297

(2) Appears as a witness in any hearing conducted under this

section or section 3721.162 of the Revised Code;

298

299

(3) Files a civil action alleging a violation of sections

3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code, or notifies a county

prosecuting attorney or the attorney general of a possible

violation of sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code.

300

301

302

303

If, under the procedures outlined in this section, a home or

its employee is found to have retaliated, the violator may be

fined up to one thousand dollars department of health may take

304

305

306
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action under section 3721.99 of the Revised Code. 307

(H)(F) When legal action is indicated, any evidence of

criminal activity found in an investigation under division (C) of

this section shall be given to the prosecuting attorney in the

county in which the home is located for investigation.

308

309

310

311

(I)(1)(a)(G)(1)(a) Any resident whose rights under sections

3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code are violated has a cause of

action against any person or home committing the violation.

312

313

314

(b) An action under division (I)(1)(a)(G)(1)(a) of this

section may be commenced by the resident or by the resident's

legal guardian or other legally authorized representative on

behalf of the resident or the resident's estate. If the resident

or the resident's legal guardian or other legally authorized

representative is unable to commence an action under that division

on behalf of the resident, the following persons in the following

order of priority have the right to and may commence an action

under that division on behalf of the resident or the resident's

estate:

315

316

317

318

319

320

321

322

323

324

(i) The resident's spouse; 325

(ii) The resident's parent or adult child; 326

(iii) The resident's guardian if the resident is a minor

child;

327

328

(iv) The resident's brother or sister; 329

(v) The resident's niece, nephew, aunt, or uncle. 330

(c) Notwithstanding any law as to priority of persons

entitled to commence an action, if more than one eligible person

within the same level of priority seeks to commence an action on

behalf of a resident or the resident's estate, the court shall

determine, in the best interest of the resident or the resident's

331

332

333

334

335
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estate, the individual to commence the action. A court's

determination under this division as to the person to commence an

action on behalf of a resident or the resident's estate shall bar

another person from commencing the action on behalf of the

resident or the resident's estate.

336

337

338

339

340

(d) The result of an action commenced pursuant to division

(I)(1)(a)(G)(1)(a) of this section by a person authorized under

division (I)(1)(b)(G)(1)(b) of this section shall bind the

resident or the resident's estate that is the subject of the

action.

341

342

343

344

345

(e) A cause of action under division (I)(1)(a)(G)(1)(a) of

this section shall accrue, and the statute of limitations

applicable to that cause of action shall begin to run, based upon

the violation of a resident's rights under sections 3721.10 to

3721.17 of the Revised Code, regardless of the party commencing

the action on behalf of the resident or the resident's estate as

authorized under divisions (I)(1)(b)(G)(1)(b) and (c) of this

section.

346

347

348

349

350

351

352

353

(2)(a) The plaintiff in an action filed under division

(I)(1)(G)(1) of this section may obtain injunctive relief against

the violation of the resident's rights. The plaintiff also may

recover compensatory damages based upon a showing, by a

preponderance of the evidence, that the violation of the

resident's rights resulted from a negligent act or omission of the

person or home and that the violation was the proximate cause of

the resident's injury, death, or loss to person or property.

354

355

356

357

358

359

360

361

(b) If compensatory damages are awarded for a violation of

the resident's rights, section 2315.21 of the Revised Code shall

apply to an award of punitive or exemplary damages for the

violation.

362

363

364

365
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(c) The court, in a case in which only injunctive relief is

granted, may award to the prevailing party reasonable attorney's

fees limited to the work reasonably performed.

366

367

368

(3) Division (I)(2)(b)(G)(2)(b) of this section shall be

considered to be purely remedial in operation and shall be applied

in a remedial manner in any civil action in which this section is

relevant, whether the action is pending in court or commenced on

or after July 9, 1998.

369

370

371

372

373

(4) Within thirty days after the filing of a complaint in an

action for damages brought against a home under division

(I)(1)(a)(G)(1)(a) of this section by or on behalf of a resident

or former resident of the home, the plaintiff or plaintiff's

counsel shall send written notice of the filing of the complaint

to the department of medicaid if the department has a right of

recovery under section 5160.37 of the Revised Code against the

liability of the home for the cost of medicaid services arising

out of injury, disease, or disability of the resident or former

resident.

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

Sec. 3721.99. (A) Whoever violates section 3721.021, division

(B), (D), or (E) of section 3721.05, division (A), (C), or (D) of

section 3721.051, section 3721.06, division (A) of section

3721.22, division (A) or (B) of section 3721.24, division (E) or

(F) of section 3721.30, or section 3721.65 of the Revised Code

shall be fined one hundred dollars for a first offense. For each

subsequent offense, the violator shall be fined five hundred

dollars If the director of health determines that a violation of

sections 3721.01 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code has occurred, the

director may do any of the following:

384

385

386

387

388

389

390

391

392

393

(1) Request a licensee to submit an acceptable plan of 394
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correction to the director stating all of the following:
395

(a) The actions being taken or to be taken to correct the

violation;

396

397

(b) The time frame for completion of the plan of correction; 398

(c) The means by which continuing compliance with the plan of

correction will be monitored.

399

400

(2) In accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code,

impose a civil monetary penalty as follows:

401

402

(a) For violations that result in no actual harm with the

potential for more than minimal harm that is not a real and

present danger to one or more residents, that are cited more than

once during a fifteen-month period from the exit of an inspection,

a civil penalty of not less than two thousand dollars and not more

than three thousand dollars.

403

404

405

406

407

408

(b) For violations that result in actual harm that is not a

real and present danger to one or more residents, a civil penalty

of not less than three thousand one hundred dollars and not more

than six thousand dollars.

409

410

411

412

(c) For violations that result in a real and present danger

to one or more residents, a civil penalty of not less than six

thousand one dollars and not more than ten thousand dollars.

413

414

415

(d)(i) For violations of sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the

Revised Code, other than a violation of division (E) of section

3721.17 of the Revised Code, a civil penalty of not less than one

thousand dollars and not more than five thousand dollars for a

first offense. For each subsequent offense, the violator may be

fined not less than two thousand dollars and not more than ten

thousand dollars.

416

417

418

419

420

421

422
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(ii) For violations of division (E) of section 3721.17 of the

Revised Code, a civil penalty up to five thousand dollars for each

offense.

423

424

425

(B) Whoever violates(e) For violations of division (A) or (C)

of section 3721.05 or division (B) of section 3721.051 of the

Revised Code shall be fined five thousand dollars for a first

offense. For each subsequent offense, the violator shall be fined

ten thousand dollars.

426

427

428

429

430

(3) In accordance with section 3721.03 of the Revised Code,

revoke a license to operate.

431

432

(B) All monies collected by the director under division (A)

of this section shall be deposited into the state treasury to the

credit of the general operations fund created in section 3701.83

of the Revised Code for use only in administering and enforcing

this chapter and the rules adopted under it.

433

434

435

436

437

(C) In determining a civil monetary penalty under division

(A)(2) of this section, the director shall consider all of the

following:

438

439

440

(1) The number of residents directly affected by the

violation;

441

442

(2) The number of staff involved in the violation; 443

(3) Any actions taken by the home to correct or mitigate the

violation, including the timeliness and sufficiency of the home's

response to the violation and the outcome of that response;

444

445

446

(4) Any concurrent federal penalties being imposed for the

same violations by the United States centers for medicare and

medicaid services, which shall reduce any civil monetary penalty

imposed under this section by the same amount;

447

448

449

450
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(5) The home's history of compliance. 451

(D) If the director determines the need for a civil monetary

penalty under this section, the director may enter into settlement

negotiations with the affected home. Settlements may include any

of the following:

452

453

454

455

(1) A lesser civil monetary penalty than initially proposed; 456

(2) Allowing the home to invest an amount equal to or less

than the proposed civil monetary penalty on remedial measures or

quality improvement initiatives designed to reduce the likelihood

of similar violations occurring in the future, which, unless

authorized by the director, shall be conducted or undertaken by a

third party;

457

458

459

460

461

462

(3) Other penalties warranted by the deficient practice and

negotiations between the director and the home.

463

464

(E) Whoever violates division (D) of section 3721.031 or

division (E) of section 3721.22 of the Revised Code is guilty of

registering a false complaint, a misdemeanor of the first degree.

465

466

467

(D)(F) Whoever violates section 3721.66 of the Revised Code

is guilty of tampering with an electronic monitoring device, a

misdemeanor of the first degree."

468

469

470

In line 105907, after "operator" insert "or there is a change

in owner of a nursing facility"

471

472

In line 105910, after "operator's" insert "or owner's" 473

In line 105915, after "operator" insert "or owner" 474

In line 105918, after "operator" insert "or owner" 475

In line 105919, after the first "operator's" insert "or

owner's"; after the second "operator's" insert "or owner's"

476

477
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In line 105921, after "operator" insert "or owner" 478

In line 105925, after "operator" insert "or owner" 479

In line 105935, after "operator" insert "or owner" 480

In line 105940, delete "manage" and insert "assume control of

the operations and cash flow of"

481

482

In line 105941, after "operator's" insert "or owner's"; after

"agent" insert";

483

484

(h) A change in control of the owner of the real property

associated with the nursing facility if, within one year of the

change of control, there is a material increase in lease payments

or other financial obligations of the operator to the owner"

485

486

487

488

In line 105949, strike though "A" and insert "Except as

provided in division (J)(1) of this section, a

489

490

In line 105953, after "operator" insert "or owner" 491

In line 105957, after "operator" insert "or owner" 492

In line 105961, after "operator" insert "or owner" 493

After line 106186, after "(NN)" insert ""Private room" means

a nursing facility bedroom that meets all of the following

criteria:

494

495

496

(1) It has four permanent, floor-to-ceiling walls and a full

door.

497

498

(2) It contains one licensed or certified bed that is

occupied by one individual.

499

500

(3) It has access to a hallway without traversing another

bedroom.

501

502

(4) It has access to a toilet and sink shared by not more

than one other resident without traversing another bedroom.

503

504
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(5) It meets all applicable licensure or other standards

pertaining to furniture, fixtures, and temperature control.

505

506

(OO)" 507

In line 106187, delete "(OO)" and insert "(PP)" 508

In line 106192, delete "(PP)" and insert "(QQ)" 509

In line 106196, delete "(QQ)" and insert "(RR)" 510

In line 106203, delete "(RR)" and insert "(SS)" 511

In line 106216, delete "(SS)" and insert "(TT)" 512

In line 106250, delete "(TT)" and insert "(UU)" 513

In line 106262, delete "(UU)" and insert "(VV)" 514

In line 106264, delete "(VV)" and insert "(WW)" 515

In line 106267, delete "(WW)" and insert "(XX)" 516

In line 106269, delete "(XX)" and insert "(YY)" 517

After line 106270, insert: 518

"(ZZ) "Surrender" has the same meaning as in section 5168.40

of the Revised Code."

519

520

In line 106271, delete "(YY)" and insert "(AAA)" 521

In line 106274, delete "(ZZ)" and insert "(BBB)" 522

In line 106276, delete "(AAA)" and insert "(CCC)" 523

In line 106278, delete "(BBB)" and insert "(DDD)" 524

In line 106372, strike through "5165.157" and insert

"5165.158"

525

526

After line 106401, insert: 527

"(D) If the nursing facility qualifies as a low occupancy

nursing facility, subtract from the sum determined under division

528

529
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(C) of this section the nursing facility's low occupancy deduction

determined under section 5165.23 of the Revised Code."

530

531

After line 106477, insert: 532

"Sec. 5165.157. (A) As used in this section, "SFF list" and

"CMS" have the same meanings as in section 5165.26 of the Revised

Code.

533

534

535

(B) The medicaid director shall establish an alternative

purchasing model for nursing facility services provided by

designated discrete units of nursing facilities to medicaid

recipients with specialized health care needs. The director shall

do all of the following with regard to the model:

536

537

538

539

540

(1) Establish criteria that a discrete unit of a nursing

facility must meet to be designated as a unit that, under the

alternative purchasing model, may admit and provide nursing

facility services to medicaid recipients with specialized health

care needs;. Beginning July 1, 2023, the director shall not

approve an application for a discrete unit of a nursing facility

that provides ventilator services if, at the time of the

application, the nursing facility is listed on table A or table D

of the SFF list or is designated as having a one-star overall

rating in CMS's nursing facility five-star rating system known as

care compare.

541

542

543

544

545

546

547

548

549

550

551

(2) Specify the health care conditions that medicaid

recipients must have to have specialized health care needs, which

may include dependency on a ventilator, severe traumatic brain

injury, the need to be admitted to a long-term acute care hospital

or rehabilitation hospital if not for nursing facility services,

and other serious health care conditions;

552

553

554

555

556

557

(3) For each fiscal year, set the total per medicaid day 558
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payment rate for nursing facility services provided by designated

discrete units of nursing facilities under the alternative

purchasing model at either of the following:

559

560

561

(a) Thirty-four per cent of the statewide average of the

total per medicaid day payment rate for long-term acute care

hospital services as of the first day of the fiscal year;

562

563

564

(b) Another amount determined in accordance with an

alternative methodology that includes improved health outcomes as

a factor in determining the payment rate.

565

566

567

(4) Require, to the extent the director considers necessary,

a medicaid recipient to obtain prior authorization for admission

to a long-term acute care hospital or rehabilitation hospital as a

condition of medicaid payment for long-term acute care hospital or

rehabilitation hospital services.

568

569

570

571

572

(B)(C) The criteria established under division (A)(1)(B)(1)

of this section shall provide for a discrete unit of a nursing

facility to be excluded from the alternative purchasing model if

the unit is paid for nursing facility services in accordance with

section 5165.153, 5165.154, or 5165.156 of the Revised Code. The

criteria may require the provider of a nursing facility that has a

discrete unit designated for participation in the alternative

purchasing model to report health outcome measurement data to the

department of medicaid.

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

581

(C) A(D) Except as provided in division (E) of this section,

a discrete unit of a nursing facility that provides nursing

facility services to medicaid recipients with specialized health

care needs under the alternative purchasing model shall be paid

for those services in accordance with division (A)(3)(B)(3) of

this section instead of the total per medicaid day payment rate

determined under section 5165.15, 5165.153, 5165.154, or 5165.156

582

583

584

585

586

587

588
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of the Revised Code. 589

(E) Beginning January 1, 2024, a discrete unit of a nursing

facility that provides ventilator services and that is listed on

table A or table D of the SFF list or is designated as having a

one-star overall rating by CMS under CMS's nursing facility

five-star rating system known as care compare shall be paid the

total per medicaid day payment rate determined under section

5165.15, 5165.153, 5165.154, or 5165.156 of the Revised Code for

those services instead of the rate determined in accordance with

division (B)(3) of this section. The rate determined under this

division applies to any resident who was admitted to the discrete

unit on or after the later of January 1, 2024, or the date on

which the nursing facility is added to table A or table D or

receives a one-star overall rating. If the nursing facility is

removed from table A or table D or no longer has a one-star

overall rating, it shall be paid the rate determined in accordance

with division (B)(3) of this section for ventilator residents in

the discrete unit on or after the date on which the nursing

facility is removed from table A or table D or no longer has a

one-star overall rating. The director may waive the requirements

of this division for a discrete unit of a nursing facility if the

director determines that the waiver is necessary to ensure access

to ventilator services in the area served by the discrete unit.

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

597

598

599

600

601

602

603

604

605

606

607

608

609

610

611

Sec. 5165.158. (A) As used in this section: 612

(1) "Category one private room" means a private room that has

unshared access to a toilet and sink.

613

614

(2) "Category two private room" means a private room that has

shared access to a toilet and sink.

615

616

(B) Beginning six months following approval by the United 617
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States Ccenters for medicare and medicaid services or on the

effective date of applicable department of medicaid rules,

whichever is later, but not sooner than April 1, 2024, the total

per medicaid day payment rate for nursing facility services

provided on or after that date in private rooms approved by the

department of medicaid under division (C) of this section shall be

the sum of both of the following:

618

619

620

621

622

623

624

(1) The total per medicaid day payment rate determined for

the nursing facility under section 5165.15 of the Revised Code;

625

626

(2) The private room incentive payment. The private room

incentive payment shall be thirty dollars per day for a category

one private room and twenty dollars per day for a category two

private room, beginning in state fiscal year 2024. The department

may increase the payment amount for subsequent fiscal years.

627

628

629

630

631

(C)(1) The department shall approve rooms in nursing

facilities to qualify for the rate described in division (B) of

this section. A nursing facility provider shall apply for approval

of its private rooms by submitting an application in the form and

manner prescribed by the department. The department shall begin

accepting applications for approval of category one private rooms

on January 1, 2024, and category two private rooms on March 1,

2024. The department may specify evidence that an applicant must

supply to demonstrate that a room meets the definition of a

private room under section 5165.01 of the Revised Code and may

conduct an on-site inspection of the room to verify that it meets

the definition. Subject to division (C)(2) of this section, the

department shall approve an application if the rooms included in

the application meet the definition of a private room under

section 5165.01 of the Revised Code.

632

633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

(2) The department shall only consider applications that meet 647
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the following criteria:
648

(a) Private rooms that are in existence on July 1, 2023, in

facilities where all of the licensed beds are in service on the

application date;

649

650

651

(b) Private rooms created by surrendering licensed beds from

its licensed capacity, or, if the facility does not hold a

license, surrendering beds that have been certified by CMS. A

nursing facility where the beds are owned by a county and the

facility is operated by a person other than the county may satisfy

this requirement by removing beds from service.

652

653

654

655

656

657

(c) Private rooms created by adding space to the nursing

facility or renovating nonbedroom space, without increasing the

total licensed bed capacity;

658

659

660

(d) A nursing facility licensed after July 1, 2023, in which

all licensed beds are in service on the application date or in

which private rooms were created by surrendering licensed beds

from its licensed capacity.

661

662

663

664

(3) The department may specify evidence that an applicant

must supply to demonstrate that it meets the conditions specified

in division (C)(2) of this section and may conduct an on-site

inspection to verify that the conditions are met.

665

666

667

668

(4) The department may deny an application if the department

determines that any of the following circumstances apply:

669

670

(a) The rooms included in the application do not meet the

definition of a private room under section 5165.01 of the Revised

Code;

671

672

673

(b) The rooms included in the application do not meet the

criteria specified in division (C)(2) of this section;

674

675
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(c) The applicant created private rooms by reducing the

number of available beds without surrendering the beds, and

surrender of the beds is required by this section;

676

677

678

(d) Approval of the room would cause projected expenditures

for private room incentive payments under this section for the

fiscal year to exceed forty million dollars in fiscal year 2024 or

one hundred sixty million dollars in fiscal year 2025 or

subsequent fiscal years. In projecting expenditures for private

room incentive payments, the department shall use a medicaid

utilization percentage of fifty per cent. If the department

determines that there are more approvable eligible applications

submitted than can be accommodated within the applicable spending

limit specified in this division, the department shall prioritize

category one private rooms.

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

(e) On the application date, the nursing facility is listed

on table A or table D of the SFF list, as defined in section

5165.01 of the Revised Code or is designated as having a one-star

overall rating in the United States centers for medicare and

medicaid services nursing facility five-star quality rating system

known as care compare.

690

691

692

693

694

695

(5) Beginning July 1, 2025, to retain eligibility for private

room rates, a nursing facility must do both of the following:

696

697

(a) Have a policy in place to prioritize placement in a

private room based on the medical and psychosocial needs of the

resident;

698

699

700

(b) Participate in the resident or family satisfaction survey

performed pursuant to section 173.47 of the Revised Code.

701

702

(6) The department shall hold all applications for a private

room incentive payment in a pending status until the United States

703

704
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centers for medicare and medicaid services approves private room

incentive payments and the department determines a facility is

qualified for the payment. An application in pending status shall

be included in the payment cap described in division (C)(4)(d) of

this section as if the application were approved.

705

706

707

708

709

(7) An applicant may request reconsideration of a denial

under division (C) of this section."

710

711

In line 106629, strike through "twenty-fifth" and insert

"seventieth"

712

713

In line 106696, reinsert "June 30, 1999"; delete "October 1,

2019"

714

715

In line 106748, reinsert all after "(b)" 716

Reinsert lines 106749 and 106750 717

In line 106751, reinsert "(c)" 718

In line 106755, reinsert "(d)"; delete "(c)" 719

In line 106757, reinsert all after "(i)" 720

Reinsert lines 106758 through 106760 721

In line 106761, reinsert "(iii)" 722

In line 106762, reinsert "June" 723

In line 106763, reinsert "30, 1999"; delete "October 1, 2019" 724

In line 106764, reinsert "(iv)"; delete "(ii)" 725

In line 106766, reinsert "(e)"; delete "(d)" 726

In line 106769, reinsert "(f)"; delete "(e)" 727

In line 106775, reinsert "(g)"; delete "(f)" 728

After line 106786, insert: 729
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"Sec. 5165.23. (A) Each state fiscal year, the department of

medicaid shall determine the critical access incentive payment for

each nursing facility that qualifies as a critical access nursing

facility. To qualify as a critical access nursing facility for a

state fiscal year, a nursing facility must meet all of the

following requirements:

730

731

732

733

734

735

(1) The nursing facility must be located in an area that, on

December 31, 2011, was designated an empowerment zone under the

"Internal Revenue Code of 1986," section 1391, 26 U.S.C. 1391.

736

737

738

(2) The nursing facility must have an occupancy rate of at

least eighty-five per cent as of the last day of the calendar year

immediately preceding the state fiscal year.

739

740

741

(3) The nursing facility must have a medicaid utilization

rate of at least sixty-five per cent as of the last day of the

calendar year immediately preceding the state fiscal year.

742

743

744

(B) A critical access nursing facility's critical access

incentive payment for a state fiscal year shall equal five per

cent of the portion of the nursing facility's total per medicaid

day payment rate for the state fiscal year that is the sum of the

rates identified in divisions (A)(1) to (4) of section 5165.15 of

the Revised Code.

745

746

747

748

749

750

(C) Each state fiscal year, the department shall determine

the low occupancy deduction for each nursing facility that

qualifies as a low occupancy nursing facility. To qualify as a low

occupancy nursing facility for a state fiscal year, a nursing

facility must have an occupancy rate lower than sixty-five per

cent. For purposes of this division, the department shall utilize

a nursing facility's occupancy rate for the licensed beds reported

on the facility's cost report for the calendar year preceding the

751

752

753

754

755

756

757

758
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fiscal year for which the rate is determined, or if the facility

is not required to be licensed, the facility's occupancy rate for

its certified beds. If the facility surrenders licensed or

certified beds before the first day of July of the calendar year

in which the fiscal year begins, the department shall calculate a

nursing facility's occupancy rate by dividing the inpatient days

reported on the facility's cost report for the calendar year

preceding the fiscal year for which the rate is determined by the

product of the number of days in the calendar year and the

facility's number of licensed, or if applicable, certified beds on

the first day of July of the calendar year in which the fiscal

year begins.

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

A low occupancy nursing facility's low occupancy deduction

for a state fiscal year shall equal five per cent of the nursing

facility's total per medicaid day payment rate for the state

fiscal year identified in division (D) of section 5165.15 of the

Revised Code, for the state fiscal year.

771

772

773

774

775

This division does not apply to any of the following: 776

(1) A nursing facility where the beds are owned by a county

and the facility is operated by a person other than the county;

777

778

(2) A nursing facility that opened during the calendar year

preceding the fiscal year for which the rate is determined or the

preceding fiscal year;

779

780

781

(3) A nursing facility that underwent a renovation during the

calendar year preceding the fiscal year for which the rate is

determined if both of the following apply:

782

783

784

(a) The renovation involved a capital expenditure of one

hundred fifty thousand dollars or more, excluding expenditures for

equipment;

785

786

787

CC0061X4 Page 28

135HB33-CC0061X4/RYT



(b) The renovation included one or more rooms housing beds

that are part of the nursing facility's licensed capacity and that

were taken out of service for at least thirty days while the rooms

were being renovated."

788

789

790

791

In line 106801, after "(6)" insert "(5)" and reinsert the

balance of the line

792

793

Reinsert lines 106802 and 106803 794

In line 106804, after "(7)" insert "(6)" and reinsert the

balance of the line

795

796

Reinsert lines 106805 through 106807 797

In line 106809, reinsert "divisions"; delete "division";

after the first stricken comma insert "and"; reinsert "(E),"

798

799

In line 106810, delete "(E)" and insert "(F)" 800

In line 106827, delete "(D)(2)" and insert "(E)(2)" 801

In line 106834, strike through "division" and insert

"divisions"; after "(C)(2)" insert "and (3)"

802

803

In line 106860, delete "Two" and insert "Seven"; after

"points" insert "for fiscal year 2024 and three points for fiscal

year 2025 and subsequent fiscal years"

804

805

806

In line 106861, delete "but not more than" and insert "per

cent."

807

808

Delete lines 106862 through 106864 809

In line 106865, delete all before "For" 810

In line 106871, delete "May" and insert "July" 811

In line 106878, delete "May" and insert "July" 812

After line 106893, after "medication" insert "; 813
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(iv) Adjusted total nurse staffing hours per resident per day

using quintiles instead of deciles by using the points assigned to

the higher of the two deciles that constitute the quintile"

814

815

816

In line 106904, reinsert "or (c)" 817

In line 106910, reinsert all before "for"; after "points"

insert "calculated"; reinsert "for" and insert "or during a"

818

819

In line 106911, reinsert "state fiscal year"; reinsert "for

all of"

820

821

In line 106912, reinsert "the quality metrics specified in"

and insert "divisions (C)(1)(a), and if applicable, division

(C)(1)(c)"; reinsert "of this section"

822

823

824

Reinsert line 106913 825

In line 106914, reinsert all before the comma; after

"facilities" insert "calculated using the points for the July 1

rate setting of that fiscal year"; reinsert "reduce the nursing"

826

827

828

In line 106915, reinsert "facility's points to zero" and

insert "until the next point calculation. If a facility's

recalculated points under division (C)(3) of this section are

below the number of points determined to be the twenty-fifth

percentile for that fiscal year, the facility shall receive zero

points for the remainder of that fiscal year."

829

830

831

832

833

834

In line 106916, reinsert all before "zero" and insert

"recalculated"; reinsert "for" and insert "the second half of the"

835

836

In line 106917, reinsert "state fiscal year" 837

In line 106919, after "section" insert "based on the most

recent four quarter average data, or the average data for fewer

quarters in the case of successor metrics, available in the

database maintained by CMS and known as the care compare, in the

838

839

840

841
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most recent month of the calendar year during which the fiscal

year for which the rate is determined begins. The metrics

specified by division (C)(1)(b) of this section shall not be

recalculated"; reinsert the stricken period and insert "In

redetermining the quality payment for each facility based on the

recalculated points, the department shall use the same per point

value determined for the quality payment at the start of the

fiscal year."

842

843

844

845

846

847

848

849

In line 106976, after "(E)" insert "(D)" and reinsert the

balance of the line

850

851

In line 106977, reinsert "payment"; reinsert "if" 852

Reinsert lines 106978 and 106979 853

In line 106980, reinsert "facility is listed in table A";

reinsert "on the first"

854

855

Reinsert lines 106981 and 106982 856

In line 106983, delete "(D)" and insert "(E)" 857

In line 106993, delete "sum of the" 858

Delete lines 106994 through 106999 859

In line 107000 delete "(ii) The" 860

In line 107003, delete "for state" 861

In line 107004, delete "fiscal year 2024" 862

In line 107006, delete "(D)(1)(a)" and insert "(E)(1)(a)" 863

In line 107010, delete "(D)(1)(b)" and insert "(E)(1)(b)" 864

In line 107013, delete "(D)(2)" and insert "(E)(2)" 865

In line 107015, reinsert "twenty-five" 866

In line 107016, delete "(E)(1)" and insert "(F)(1)" 867
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In line 107026, delete all after "(2)" and insert "A" 868

In line 107028, delete "April" and insert "July" 869

Delete lines 107037 through 107046 870

In line 107048, reinsert "at least" 871

In line 107049, reinsert "five"; delete "two"; strike through

"a" and insert "the"

872

873

In line 107051, strike through ", ancillary and support," 874

After line 108152, insert: 875

"Sec. 5168.40. As used in sections 5168.40 to 5168.56 of the

Revised Code:

876

877

(A) "Bed surrender" means the following: 878

(1) In the case of a nursing home, the removal of a bed from

a nursing home's licensed capacity in a manner that reduces the

total licensed capacity of all nursing homes and makes it

impossible for the bed to ever be a part of any nursing home's

licensed capacity;

879

880

881

882

883

(2) In the case of a hospital, the removal of a hospital bed

from registration under section 3701.07 of the Revised Code as a

skilled nursing facility bed or long-term care bed in a manner

that reduces the total number of hospital beds registered under

that section as skilled nursing facility beds or long-term care

beds and makes it impossible for the bed to ever be registered as

a skilled nursing facility bed or long-term care bed.

884

885

886

887

888

889

890

(B) "Change of operator" means an entering operator becoming

the operator of a nursing home or hospital in the place of the

exiting operator.

891

892

893

(1) Actions that constitute a change of operator include the 894
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following:
895

(a) A change in an exiting operator's form of legal

organization, including the formation of a partnership or

corporation from a sole proprietorship;

896

897

898

(b) A transfer of all the exiting operator's ownership

interest in the operation of the nursing home or hospital to the

entering operator, regardless of whether ownership of any or all

of the real property or personal property associated with the

nursing home or hospital is also transferred;

899

900

901

902

903

(c) A lease of the nursing home or hospital to the entering

operator or the exiting operator's termination of the exiting

operator's lease;

904

905

906

(d) If the exiting operator is a partnership, dissolution of

the partnership;

907

908

(e) If the exiting operator is a partnership, a change in

composition of the partnership unless both of the following apply:

909

910

(i) The change in composition does not cause the

partnership's dissolution under state law.

911

912

(ii) The partners agree that the change in composition does

not constitute a change in operator.

913

914

(f) If the operator is a corporation, dissolution of the

corporation, a merger of the corporation into another corporation

that is the survivor of the merger, or a consolidation of one or

more other corporations to form a new corporation.

915

916

917

918

(2) The following, alone, do not constitute a change of

operator:

919

920

(a) A contract for an entity to manage a nursing home or

hospital as the operator's agent, subject to the operator's

921

922
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approval of daily operating and management decisions;
923

(b) A change of ownership, lease, or termination of a lease

of real property or personal property associated with a nursing

home or hospital if an entering operator does not become the

operator in place of an exiting operator;

924

925

926

927

(c) If the operator is a corporation, a change of one or more

members of the corporation's governing body or transfer of

ownership of one or more shares of the corporation's stock, if the

same corporation continues to be the operator has the same meaning

as in section 5165.01 of the Revised Code.

928

929

930

931

932

(C) "Effective date of a change of operator" means the day an

entering operator becomes the operator of a nursing home or

hospital.

933

934

935

(D) "Entering operator" means the person or government entity

that will become the operator of a nursing home or hospital on the

effective date of a change of operator.

936

937

938

(E) "Exiting operator" means an operator that will cease to

be the operator of a nursing home or hospital on the effective

date of a change of operator.

939

940

941

(F) "Franchise permit fee rate" means the rate determined in

accordance with section 5168.41 of the Revised Code.

942

943

(G) "Hospital" has the same meaning as in section 3727.01 of

the Revised Code.

944

945

(H) "Hospital long-term care unit" means any distinct part of

a hospital in which any of the following beds are located:

946

947

(1) Beds registered pursuant to section 3701.07 of the

Revised Code as skilled nursing facility beds or long-term care

beds;

948

949

950
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(2) Beds licensed as nursing home beds under section 3721.02

or 3721.09 of the Revised Code.

951

952

(I) "Indirect guarantee percentage" means the percentage

specified in the "Social Security Act," section 1903(w)(4)(C)(ii),

42 U.S.C. 1396b(w)(4)(C)(ii), that is to be used in determining

whether a class of providers is indirectly held harmless for any

portion of the costs of a broad-based health-care-related tax. If

the indirect guarantee percentage changes during a fiscal year,

the indirect guarantee percentage is the following:

953

954

955

956

957

958

959

(1) For the part of the fiscal year before the change takes

effect, the percentage in effect before the change;

960

961

(2) For the part of the fiscal year beginning with the date

the indirect guarantee percentage changes, the new percentage.

962

963

(J) "Medicaid days" and "nursing facility" have the same

meanings as in section 5165.01 of the Revised Code.

964

965

(K)(1) "Nursing home" means all of the following: 966

(a) A nursing home licensed under section 3721.02 or 3721.09

of the Revised Code, including any part of a home for the aging

licensed as a nursing home;

967

968

969

(b) A facility or part of a facility, other than a hospital,

that is certified as a skilled nursing facility under Title XVIII;

970

971

(c) A nursing facility, other than a portion of a hospital

certified as a nursing facility.

972

973

(2) "Nursing home" does not include either of the following: 974

(a) A county home, county nursing home, or district home

operated pursuant to Chapter 5155. of the Revised Code;

975

976

(b) A nursing home maintained and operated by the department

of veterans services under section 5907.01 of the Revised Code.

977

978
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(L) "Operator" means the person or government entity

responsible for the daily operating and management decisions for a

nursing home or hospital.

979

980

981

(M) "Title XIX" means Title XIX of the "Social Security Act,"

42 U.S.C. 1396 et seq.

982

983

(N) "Title XVIII" means Title XVIII of the "Social Security

Act," 42 U.S.C. 1395 et seq."

984

985

In line 124606, after "173.21," insert "173.24," 986

In line 124668, after "3721.026," insert "3721.08, 3721.17,

3721.99,"

987

988

In line 124724, after "5165.152," insert "5165.157,"; after

"5165.192," insert "5165.23,"

989

990

In line 124727, after "5168.26," insert "5168.40," 991

In line 272722, delete "$5,267,359,400 $6,004,894,000" and

insert "$5,381,259,400 $6,165,694,000"

992

993

In line 272723, delete "$13,997,454,600 $15,249,073,000" and

insert "$14,210,154,600 $15,534,873,000"

994

995

In line 272724, delete "$19,264,814,000 $21,253,967,000" and

insert "$19,591,414,000 $21,700,567,000"

996

997

In line 272727, add $113,900,000 to fiscal year 2024 and

$160,800,000 to fiscal year 2025

998

999

In line 272728, add $212,700,000 to fiscal year 2024 and

$285,800,000 to fiscal year 2025

1000

1001

In line 272729, add $326,600,000 to fiscal year 2024 and

$446,600,000 to fiscal year 2025

1002

1003

In line 272755, add $326,600,000 to fiscal year 2024 and

$446,600,000 to fiscal year 2025

1004

1005
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In line 273413, delete "the sum of" 1006

In line 273414, delete all before "the" and insert "due to" 1007

In line 281791, after "3701.021," insert "3721.08, 3721.17,

3721.99, 5165.01, 5165.15, 5165.151, 5165.152, 5165.157, 5165.158,

5165.16, 5165.19, 5165.192, 5165.23, 5165.26, 5165.36, 5165.771,

5168.40,"

1008

1009

1010

1011

The motion was __________ agreed to.

SYNOPSIS

Medicaid day payment rate 1012

R.C. 5165.15, 5165.16, 5165.19, and 5165.23 1013

Restores House-added provisions removed by the Senate, with

changes, that include a new formula deduction for low occupancy

nursing facilities and establish a formula to calculate the

deduction amount.

1014

1015

1016

1017

Modifies the calculation of direct care costs in the rate

formula to use the 70th percentile rate among nursing facilities,

instead of the 25th percentile rate as under current law, or the

median rate as in the House.

1018

1019

1020

1021

Eliminates ancillary and support costs from House provisions

requiring ODM to use only 40% of the increase from the FY 2024

rebasing when calculating certain cost centers during the biennium

and makes the requirement apply to the increase in its base rate

instead of the sum of the increase, so that requirement only

applies to direct care costs.

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

Nursing facility private room payment 1028
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R.C. 5165.01, 5165.15, and 5165.158 1029

Restores House-added provisions removed by the Senate, with

changes, that establish a private room per day payment rate for

services provided to residents in private rooms of nursing

facilities.

1030

1031

1032

1033

Quality incentive payments 1034

R.C. 5165.26 1035

Restores House-added provisions, with changes, modified by

the Senate, that make changes to the nursing facility quality

incentive payment rate formula.

1036

1037

1038

Restores House-added new quality metrics for FY 2025, removed

by the Senate, and adds a metric for adjusted total nurse staffing

hours per resident per day.

1039

1040

1041

Removes the Senate payment tiers and instead establishes an

occupancy rate add-on of 7.5 points in FY 2024 if the facility's

occupancy rate is greater than 75% and 3 points in subsequent

fiscal years.

1042

1043

1044

1045

Adds a new provision requiring quality incentive payments to

be recalculated in the second half of each fiscal year based on

the most recent data.

1046

1047

1048

Restores to $125 million in each fiscal year the House cap to

the add-on (the Senate reduced the total to $100 million in each

fiscal year).

1049

1050

1051

Restores provisions of current law, eliminated in the House

and Senate versions, that disqualify a nursing facility from a

quality incentive payment if it is on the SFF list or, with some

modifications from former law, if its number of quality points is

less than the bottom 25% of nursing facilities.

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056
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Removes House-added provisions that would have adjusted a

facility's quality incentive payment amount by the per diem amount

its ancillary and support costs changed as a result of the FY 2024

rebasing.

1057

1058

1059

1060

Removes House-added provisions that addressed quality

incentive payments for nursing facilties that undergo a change of

operator when the entering operator owns the physical assets of or

has majority ownership of the facility.

1061

1062

1063

1064

Case-mix scores 1065

R.C. 5165.192 1066

Removes Executive provisions, removed by the House and

restored by the Senate, that would have changed the method to

calculate nursing facility case-mix scores, while retaining the

bill's terminology update from "low resource utilization resident"

to "low case-mix resident."

1067

1068

1069

1070

1071

Rebasing 1072

R.C. 5165.36 1073

Removes House and Senate provisions modifying the rate of

rebasing to at least every two years or every two years,

respectively, and restores current law requiring rebasing to occur

at least once every five fiscal years.

1074

1075

1076

1077

Adds ancillary and support costs to the current prohibition

on rebasing capital costs.

1078

1079

Nursing home change of operator 1080

R.C. 3721.01, 3721.026, 3721.08, 3721.17, 3721.99, 5165.01,

5168.40; conforming changes R.C. 173.24

1081

1082

Modifies a House-added provision regarding the nursing home

change of operator application to do all of the following:

1083

1084

CC0061X4 Page 39

135HB33-CC0061X4/RYT



- Require the ODH Director to investigate allegations that an

entering operator failed to submit a change of operator

application or provided fraudulent information on a submitted

application.

1085

1086

1087

1088

- Require a change of operator applicant to attest that the

applicant has (rather than requiring the applicant to submit)

evidence of (1) nursing home policies and procedures, (2) general

and professional liability insurance, and (3) sufficient numbers

of qualified staff.

1089

1090

1091

1092

1093

- Removes a requirement that the ODH Director make the change

of operator application available on its web site.

1094

1095

Modifies a House-added provision to add another event that

constitutes a change of operator.

1096

1097

Nursing home violations 1098

R.C. 3721.99 1099

Adds a new provision that eliminates the time frame in which

ODH must initiate an investigation after receiving a complaint

that the rights of a resident of a nursing home have been

violated.

1100

1101

1102

1103

Adds a provision that modifies the actions that the Director

may take following a violation committed by a nursing home.

1104

1105

Department of Medicaid 1106

Section 333.10 1107

Increases GRF line item 651525, Medicaid Health Care

Services, by $326,600,000 ($113,900,000 state share) in FY 2024

and by $446,600,000 ($160,800,000 state share) in FY 2025.

1108

1109

1110
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